
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA
April 10, 2019

6:30 p.m. — Regular Session

1. CALLTOORDER

2. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY
At this time, members of the public may address the Commission. Please state your name
prior to making comments.

3. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA

4. CONSENT AGENDA

5. SPECIFIC ITEMS OF BUSINESS:
A. Commissioner Protocol Manual Review

6. OTHER BUSINESS

7. STAFF REPORTS
A. General Manager

8. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY

9. ADJOURNMENT

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
1220 Lakeway Drive

Bellingham, WA 98229

001



AGENDA
BILL Consent Agenda

Item 4

DATE SUBMITTED: April 4, 2019 MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM: Rachael Hope

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. See below

2.

3.

RESOLUTION FORMAL ACTION! INFORMATIONAL

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED MOTION /OTHER

D
** TO BE UPDATED 4/10/19 **

BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT

• Meeting Notes from the March 27, 2019 Board Meeting

• Payroll for Pay Period #08 (03/23/2019 through 04/05/2019) totaling $XX,XXX.XX.

• Payroll Benefits for Pay Period #08 totaling $XX,XXX.XX.

• Accounts Payable Vouchers totaling $XX,XXX.XX.

002



REGULAR SESSION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Minutes

March 27, 2019

Board President Laura Abele called the Regular Session to order at 8:02 am.

Attendees: Commissioner Laura Abele Commissioner Todd Citron
Commissioner John Carter Commissioner Leslie McRoberts
General Manager Justin Clary Finance Manager/Treasurer Debi Denton
Recording Secretary Rachael Hope Operations & Maintenance Manager Brent Winters
District Legal Counsel Bob Carmichael

Excused Absences: Commissioner Bruce Ford

No public were in attendance.

Consent Agenda

Action Taken
McRoberts moved, Carter seconded, approval of:

• Meeting Notes from the 03/13/2018 Board Meeting

• Payroll for Pay Period #07 (03/09/2019 through 03/22/2019) totaling $43,225.08.

• Payroll Benefits for Pay Period #07 totaling $49,697.49.
• Accounts Payable Vouchers totaling $86,536.80.

Motion passed.

Amendment No. 01 to the 2019 Budget
Denton explained that at the March 13, 2019 board meeting, the Board of Commissioners awarded the Country
Club HDD 8” Gravity Main Sewer Project to the low bidder. The construction contract awarded totaled
$760,585.00 including 8.5% sales tax. The approved 2019 Budget includes $450,000.00 for this project. Staff
recommends allocating supplemental funds as follows:

$450,000.00 Funds Approved in 2019 Budget (Fund 420)
Proposed Supplemental Funding Sources

$93,390.00 Unallocated 2016 Bond Funds (Fund 431)

$217,195.00 Sewer/Storm Contingency Fund (Fund 425)
$760,585.00 Total

Fund 431 includes $93,390 of unallocated funds from the 2016 Bond. The proposed allocation would utilize all
remaining available funds from the 2016 Bond. Fund 425 currently has a balance of $659,996.83 and was
created to ensure that unanticipated projects related to sewer system and stormwater system expenses be
funded in a timely manner. Staff recommends Fund 425 be replenished through future budget(s) to the full
amount. This will be accomplished through prioritizing and scheduling capital improvement projects during the
2020 budgeting process. Discussion followed.

LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT
1220 Lakeway Drive

Bellingham, WA 98229

Meeting Minutes March 27, 2019 Page1 003



Action Taken
McRoberts moved, Citron seconded, to transfer $93,390 from the 2016 Bond Fund, Fund 431, and

$217,195 from the Sewer/Stormwater Contingency Fund, Fund 425, to the System Reinvestment Fund
(Fund 420) to fully fund the Country Club HOD 8” Gravity Main Sewer construction contract. Motion
passed.

Staff Presentation: 10 Sunnyside Lane Lateral Failure
Winters provided a spotlight on a recent issue in the District, a lateral line failure caused by the ground shifting
and a vertical joint separating on Sunnyside Lane. He highlighted where and why the problem occurred, how
the District has responded, the challenges of the situation, temporary solutions, and plans for a permanent
solution. Discussion followed.

Commissioner Protocol Manual Review
Clary detailed that the Commissioner Protocol Manual was originally adopted by the Board of Commissioners in
2011. The manual documents accepted practices and clarifies expectations of the Board, both holistically and
as individual Commissioners. Review of the manual is one of the Board-approved staff initiatives for 2019. Both
the management team and legal counsel have reviewed the manual, and proposed revisions to the manual to:
align it with current laws and regulations; refine it to provide consistency of references and term uses; improve
its readability; and expand it to include pertinent topics identified by staff/counsel. Discussion followed.

General Manager’s Report
Clary updated the Board on a few items, including his prepared comments for the Joint Councils Meeting later
in the day and the District’s recent participation in a collaborative Emergency Management exercise with the
Whatcom County Sherriff’s Office, South Whatcom Fire Authority, the City of Bellingham Public Works
Department and the Sudden Valley Community Association. Discussion followed.

Engineering Department Report
Clary presented the monthly Summary of Existing District Projects, and briefly informed the Board that staff are
moving forward with the awarded contracts as well as working on getting an ad out for bids on a large valve
purchase.

Finance Department Report
Denton explained that accounting and finance staff are currently working on 2018 year end statements and
reporting, as well as preparing data for availability for the 2020 rate study. Discussion followed.

Operations Department Report
Winters spotlighted recent crew achievements, including completion of 95 service tasks last month, trenching
and confined space training, and receipt of the District’s new boom lift and the certification training received.

With no further business, Abele adjourned the Regular Session at 9:47 a.m.

Recording Secretary, Rachael Hope Date Minutes Approved

Laura Abele Todd Citron John Carter

Bruce Ford Leslie McRoberts

Meeting Minutes March 27, 2019 p a g e I 2 00 4



AGENDA Commissioner Protocol Manual
BILL Review and Revision

Item 5.A

DATE SUBMITTED: March 27, 2019 MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM: Justin Clary, General Manager

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS
1. Commissioner Protocol Manual (revised)

RESOLUTION FORMAL ACTION! INFORMATIONAL
TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED MOTION /0TH ER

BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT
Originally adopted by the Board of Commissioners in 2011, the Commissioner Protocol
Manual has undergone one revision (within approximately four months of its adoption).
The manual documents accepted practices and clarifies expectations of the Board, both
holistically and as individual Commissioners.

Review of the manual is one of the Board-approved staff initiatives for 2019. Both the
management team and legal counsel have reviewed the manual, and propose revisions to
the manual to: align it with current laws and regulations; refine it to provide consistency of
references and term uses; improve its readability; and expand it to include pertinent topics
identified by staff/counsel. The board performed an initial review of the manual during its
regularly scheduled March 27 meeting. During this review, the board identified an
incomplete sentence at the end of Section 4.03 (sentence is now complete) and requested
revision to Section 7.10 pertaining to meeting attendance via speakerphone (has since
been revised to available phone or video technology), and to define if a Commissioner
attending a meeting remotely is eligible for compensation for attending the meeting (text
has been added to reflect commissioners would be eligible for compensation).

FISCAL IMPACT
There is no fiscal impact associated with revision of the manual.

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION
Staff recommends revision of the Commissioner Protocol Manual as presented.

PROPOSED MOTION
A recommended motion is:

“I move to approve the Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District Commissioner
Protocol Manual, as presented.”

005



COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL

LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT

Adopted September 14, 2011
Revised January 11, 2012

Revised ArriI 10, 2019

FOREWORD

In the course of serving as a public official, there are a myriad of issues with which you will become
involved. This protocol manual attempts to centralize information on comnion issues related to
your role as a member of the Board of Commissioners.

The issues that are addressed in this pubhcation are often complex and subjective. This manual is
intended to be a guide and is not a substitute for the counsel, guidance, or opinion of the District’s
legal counsel.

The Board of Commissioners has formally adopted the protocols included in this reference
document. Provisions contained herein will be reviewed as needed. The Board, by majority vote, in
its sole discretion, reserves the right to revise this protocol manual at any time, without notice.

006



Chapter 1—Introduction and Overview

As a member of the Board of Commissioners (Comniissioner, you not only establish important and
often critical policies for the Lake \Vhatcom Water and Sewer District (District), you are also a
board member of a municipal corporation having an annual operating budget of over four several
million dollars. The scope of services and issues and problems that you will deal with as a
Commissioner will go beyond that which is reported publicly. Your service will likely have long
term impact on the operations of the District for some time into the future. This document is
intended to help you in understanding your role as a steward of the District and its resources.

1 .01 Purpose of the Protocol Manual

Lake \Vhatcom Water and Sewer Ihe District has modified developed this protocol manual to assist
the Board of Commissioners (Board) by documenting accepted practices and clarifying expectations.
Administration of District affairs is greatly enhanced by the agreement of the Commissioners Board

and staff to be bound by these practices. While attempting not to be overly restrictive, procedures
are established so that expectations and practices can be clearly articulated to guide Commissioners
in their actions. 1 his protocol manual clues not restrict or expand Board authority from the authority
granted in state or local law or District resolution.

1.02 Overview of Basic District Documents

This protocol manual provides a summary of important aspects of Board of Comnussioner
activities. However, it cannot incorporate all material and information necessary for undertaking the
business of the District. Many other laws, plans, and documents exist which bind the
Commissioners to certain courses of action and practices. The following is a summary of the most
notable documents, which establish the—Board of Commissioner’s direction.

A. A fission and Goals
Our mission is to provide the best possible water and sewer services to District customers in a cost
efficient manner, and in a war that contributes to protecting Lake Whatcom’s water quah.

We strive:

• To provide safe and reliable drinking water with sufficient capacity to meet fire flow
requirements and sewage collection to District customers.

• To establish connection charges and utility rates necessary to maintain the District’s financial
viability.

• To protect the natural resources within the Lake Whatcom watershed through cooperative
efforts with other community and governmental organizations.

• To be recognized as an outstanding public utility that is responsive to the diverse
expectations of its customers.

• To maintain the District’s facilities through effective planning. prevention, and corrective
maintenance practices.

• To provide sewer and water service to those portions of the District as may reasonably be
served.

• To have an organization environment that is responsive to customer needs, promotes

teamwork and a safe work environment, and allows all people to achieve their full potential.

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 1
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



B. District Administrative Code
The Aidministrative cGode contains District regulations adopted by iResolution. In addition to
those administrative matters, the administrative code contains a variety of regulations including, but
not limited to, health and safety issues and development-related standards.

C’. Personnel Polities IVianual
It is the policy of the District to uphold, promote, and demand the highest standards of ethics from
all of its elected officials and staff. Accordingly, District employees are expected to maintain the
utmost standards of personal integrity, truthfulness, honesty, and fairness in carrying out their public
duties; avoid any improprieties in their roles as public servants; and never use their District position
or powers for personal gain. The Personnel Policies Manual serves as an overall guideline for staff
conduct.

I). Revised Code of IL,shington
Numerous state statutes and administrative regulations govern the operation of all local
governments, including the District. The District is a special purpose district that is vested with all of
the powers set forth in Title 57 Revised Code of\Vashington (RCW’.

DL. Annual Budget
The annual budget is the primary tool and road map for accomplishing the goals of the District.
The budget document is the result of one of the most important processes the District undertakes.
By adopting the annual budget, the District makes policy decisions, sets priorities, allocates
resources, and provides the framework for District operations. The District’s financial year runs
from January 1 through December 31. The budget should be prepared and adopted by no later than
December 31 of the preceding year.

Finantial Retorts
Periodic financial reports include the financial condition of the District as reflected in the balance
sheet, the results of operations as reflected in income statements, and related cash and investment
reports. The annual financial report includes the financial statements of the District for a calendar
year. It includes the financial condition of the District as reflected in the balance sheet, the results of
operations as reflected in income statements and related footnotes.

4 , comprehensive Plans
Pursuant to Chapter 57.16 RCW, the-water and sewer comprehensive plan addresses the District’s
long-range planning needs relative to the operation and maintenance ofs water and sewer
infrastructure of the District. The comprehensive planre± reviewed on an ongoing basis, and
revised as required by State law.

/1. Si*-year Capital Improvement Plan
The Tenix_year Capital Improvement Plan serves as a guide for determining priorities, planning,
financing, and constructing capital projects which add to, support, or improve the physical
infrastructure, capital assets, or productive capacity of the District. The Capital Improvement Plan
also serves as the basis for the District’s long:-range planning and Ccomprehensive Pplans.

103 Orientation of New Commissioners

It is important for Commissioners to gain an understanding of the full range of services and
programs provided by the District. As new members join the Board, the General Manager will host
an orientation program that provides an opportuni for Commissioners to tour District facilities
and meet with key staff within the first quarter of taking office. Training opportunities for new

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 2
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



Commissioners include the Washington Association of Water and Sewer Districts-sponsored annual
Commissioner Workshop (tipicallv offered each JanuaT) and Open Public Meenngs Act training
available online (see section 7.09.D). At any time, if there are facilities or programs about which you
would like more information, arrangements will be made to increase your awareness of these
operations and opportunities.

Chapter 2—Board of Commissioners General Powers and Responsibilities

2.01 Board of Commissioners

Fundamentally, the powers of the Board of Commissioners are to be utilized for the good of the
District’s ratepayers. The Board of Cornimssioncrs is the policy making body of the District. Most
notably, state 1aw-itnd m particular; litle 57 RCW, as well aan District approved Riesolutions
grant establish the powers and responsibilities of the Board.

It is important to note that the Board acts as a body. No member has any extraordinary powers
beyond those of other members. When it comes to establishing policies, voting, and in other
significant areas, all members are equal. It is also important to note that policy is established by a
majority vote of the Board. While individual members may disagree with decisions of the majority, a
decision of the majority does bindt the Board and District to a course of action. Members
Commissioners musishould respect adopted Board policy. In turn, it is staff’s responsibility to
ensure the policy of the Board is upheld and carried out.

Actions of staff to pursue the policy direction established by a majority of the Board do not reflect
any bias against Board MembersCommissioners who held a minority opinion on an issue.

In order to uphold the integrity of the Board of Commissioners, and to provide proper checks and
balances, members of the BoardCommissioners must refrain from becoming directly involved in the
administrative affairs of the District. As the Board is the policy making body and the maker adopter
of District Rresolutions, its involvement in the day to day operations of the District or the
enforcement of Rresolutions through other than legislative means would only damage the credibility
of the system.

The Board and its members shall not give orders to any subordinate of the General Manager and
will deal with the staff through the General Manager or his/her designee. Subject to and theWhile
it may holding of executive sessions to discuss and review certain personnel matters, the Board is
not prohibited, duringwhile in open session, from fully and freely discussing with the General
Manager anything pertaining to appointments and removals of District employees. See also Chapter
5, below.

202 Role of Board MembersCommissioners

Members of the Board of Commissioners are collectively responsible for establishing policy,
adopting an annual budget, and providing vision and goals to the General Manager. The following
outline is a brief description of the various duties of Board MembersCommissioners. The
description is not intended to be comprehensive, but rather it is an effort to summarize the primary
responsibilities of the Board.

Smimarv olBoard Duties and Re#onsibi/ities
1. Establish Policy

a) Adopt goals and objectives

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 3
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



b) Establish priorities
c) Approve/amend the operating and capital budgets
d) Approve contracts
e) Adopt resolutions

2. Supervision of General Manager

a) Hire Appoint the General Manager
b) Evaluate the performance of the General i\Ianager

3. Provide Public Leadership
a) Promote representative governance
b) Mediate conflicting mterests while building a consensus
c) Commumcate the District’s vision and goals to ratepayers
d) Represent the District’s interest at regional, county, state, and federal levels

4. Decision-Making
a) Study problems
b) Review alternatives
c) Determine best course of public policy

203 Organization of the Board

Each year at the first meeting in January, the Board shall select from its members, one mcmbcr
Commissioner to serve as the President of the Board and one Commissioner to serve as. The Board
will also select a Secretary of the Board from its members. The President of the Board serves as the
presiding officer and acts as chair at all meetings of the Board of Commissioners. The President of
the Board may participate in all deliberations of the Board in the same manner as any other member
and may vote unless a conflict of interest exists. The President of the Board does not possess any

I power of veto. \Vhcn three or more members of the Board of Commissioners arc present, tThe
President of the Board may not move an action, but may second a motion where it could affect the
outcome of the proceedings.

2.04 Absence of Board MembersCommissioners

In the absence of the President of the Board, the Secretary of the Board shall perform the duties of
the President of the Board. If any Board MembcrsCommissioners are absent from the District for
more than 15 days, they shall notify the other Board MembcrsCommissioncrs and the General
Manager. See also section 65.09, below.

2.05 Resignation of a Board MemberCommissioner

If a Board MemberCommissioner resigns from the Board of Comnilssioners before his/her term of
office is up, a new Board MemberCommissioner will be appointed to fill the vacated position as
provided by lnwScction 57.12.020 RC\V. as amended.

2.06 Emergency Response

In the event of an emergency major disaster, the Board of Commissioners, under advisement of
the General Manager and when practically possible, shall sign the declaration of emergency by
Resolution. This allows staff to waive or bypass bidding requirements. An “emergency” occurs
when the public health, safety, or welfare is being immediately affected.

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 4
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 0 1 0



207 Appointment of General Manager

The Board of Commissioners is responsible for appointing one position within the District
organization, which is the General Manager. The General Manager serves at the pleasure of the
Board. The General Manager is responsible for all personnel within the District organization.

Chapter 3—Financial Matters

3.01 Board Compensation

Board membersCommissioners are compensated per state law (RC\V 57.l2.Ol0)an±per Board
meeting attended. Board compensation is either increased or decreased per State lawthat statute as
amended. Compensation is given for each day or portion of a day spent in attendance at a Board
meeting or in performance of other official duties. I’he maximum annual compensation for a
Commissioner shall be the maximum annual compensation allowed by state law. See Resolution No.
725.

1-lowever. tlhe Board, through the adoption of a RTesolution, may set the compensation below the
level set by the state if desired. RCW 57.12.010 also permits individual board
membersCommissioners to waive all or any portion of their compensation, and provides a
procedure for doing so.

irCt comn . compensated at the maximum rate allowed by state law for each day
or portion thereof spent in actual attendance at official meetings of thc district board, or
performance of other official services or duties on behalf of the district. The maximum annual
compensation for a district comn inner shall be the maximum annual compensation allowed by
state law. Kcsolutlon ,. , -

3.02 Financial Disclosure

Pursuant to Chapter 42.1 7\ RCW, candidates for the office of District Commissioner are required
to file a financial disclosure statement with the State Public Disclosure Commission within two
weeks of filing a nomination paper. When appointed to fill a vacancy on the Board, the appointee is
required to file a financial disclosure statement with the State Public Disclosure Commission,
covering the preceding 12-month period, within two weeks of being so appointed. Board
McmbcrsCurrent Commissioners are required to file a financial disclosure statement with the S.ate
Public Disclosure Commission on an annual basis after January 1 and before April 15 of each year
covering the previous calendar year. Board MembersCurrent Commissioners whose terms expire on
December31 shall file the statement for the year that ended on that December 31. Statements filed
in any of the above cases vffl be available for public inspection.

The filing of such disclosure statements is the responsibility of each individual Commissioner, not
the District. (See )Failure to file a disclosure statement or filing incorrect information in the
disclosure statement may result in a civil penalty or criminal prosecution.

3.03 Travel Policy

Members of the Board of Commissioners are subject to the following travel policy:

71. 4ro,’ed Tm,e/

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 5 fl 1LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



The General Manager must approval all travel expenditures a Commissioner seeks to have
reimbursed. The General Manager shall only authorize reimbursement of travel expenses for matters
related directly to the Conunissioner’s official duties as a Commissioner for the District.

—1-I3. Travel Involving an Overmht Stay
All reasonable transportation expenses for approved travel (as defined in the following paragraphs)
will be reimbursed. Any travel involving an overnight stay should have the prior approval of the
General Manager. Board MembcrsCommissioners should endeavor to attend training and
conferences in the state whenever possible; if such training or conference is of comparable value to
that offered out of state.

(. - Reimbursement of Travel Expenses
A fully itemized claim for expense reimbursement must be submitted to the Finance General
Manager, or his or her designee, within 15 calendar days of return from travel along with
documentation of attendance in the form of a copy of the cover sheet of the program or agenda for
the event attended.

). Individual Meals
Reasonable costs of necessary meals while conducting District business are reimbursab1e

1. Detailed receipts must accompany all reimbursement claims

2. Reimbursement will not be paid for alcoholic beverages.

3. Reimbursement will not be paid for expenses for spouses, guests, non-employees, or other
persons not authorized to receive reimbursement under this policy or State regulations.

4. One person may claim reimbursement for several employees or officials eating together, as
long as all the names are listed on the reimbursement claim.

5. All out of town lodgmg arrangements should be charged to the District credit card whenever
possible.

/ L Use ofPersonal Vehicles
Mileage for the use of personal vehicles will be reimbursed at the current IRS allowable mileage rate.
Reimbursement shall only be made to the owner of the vehicle.

1’. (Jance/alion
Commissioners shall adhere to cancelation deadlines when canceling training, conferences, and
related travel. Except in the case of a personal or family emergency or in the event the cancelation
was a District business decision, a Commissioner may not be reimbursed for expenses relating to a
training, conference, or other event he/she did not attend and shall reimburse the District for any
pre-paid expenses.

Chapter 4—Communications

4.01 Communication from Commissioners

The President of the Board is generally responsible for communicating the Board’s position on
policy matters to entities outside of the District on the Board’s behalf, provided that the Board may
in its discretion direct that another Commissioner handle communication on its behalf on particular
a matter. The General Manager may assist the President of the Board or such other Commissioner
as needed. The Board may also request the assistance of the District’s legal counsel in preparing such
communication.

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 6
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



On occasion, one or more Commissioners may wish to correspond on an issue on which the Board
has vet to take a position or, has no position. In these circumstances, Commissioners should clearly
indicate that they are not speaking for the Board as a whole, but for themselves as one member of
the Board.

District letterhead and staff support may not be used for personal or pohucal purposes.

4.O42 State Public Disclosure Records Act and Open Public Meetings Act

To ensure that business communications submitted to and by Board membersCommissioners
comply with the State Public Disclosure Records Act, RC\V 42.56, and the State Open Public
Meetings Act, RCW 42.30, the following is set forth:

A. General Communications

All writings including without himtation letters, memoranda, d—interactive computer
communications, and phone text messages, involving Board McmbcrsCommissioners, the subject of
which relates to the conduct of the Board or the performance of any District function, with few
exceptions as stated by the Public Disclosure Records Act, are public records. Copies of such
letters, memoranda, and interactive computer communication may not be provided to the public or
news media without the filing of a public disclosure request with the District. Records stored on a
personal computer or ecU phone may also be public records subject to public disclosure. All requests
for District records by the public should be directed to the General Manager. or his or her designee.

B. lVritten ti’ommunications
Written letters and memoranda received by the District and; addressed to a Board
MemberCommissioner or the Board as a body; will be photocopied and provided to all Board
MembersComimsstoners.; and a copy shall be kept according to the District’s Records Retention
Schedule.

C. Electronic Communications

Informal messages with no retention value and that do not relate to the functional rcsponsibth of
the recipient or sender as a public official, such as meeting notices, reminders, telephone messages
and informal notes ordinarily do not constitute a public record. Board membersCommissioners are
strongly encouraged to use the District’s e-mail system id District-provided equipment when
conducting District business.

E-mail communications that are intended for review by all Board MemberaCommissioners, whether
concurrently or serially must be considered in light of the Open Public Meetings Act. If the
intended purpose of the e-mail is to have a discussion that should be held at an open meeting, the
electronic discussion should not occur. The use of e-mail communication to form a collective
decision of the Board is inappropriate and could be a violation of the Open Public Meetings Act.

E-mail should be used cautiously when seeking legal advice or to discuss matters of pending
litigation or other “confidential” District business. In general, e-mail is discoverable in litigation, and
even deleted e-mail is not necessarily removed from the system. Confidential e-mail
communications should not be shared with individuals other than the intended recipients, or the
attorney-client privilege protecting the document from disclosure may be waived.

E-mail between Board MembersCommissioners and between Board MembersCommissioners and
staff shall not be transmitted to the public or news media without the fthng of a public disclosure
request with the General Manager.

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 7 0 1 3
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



No e-mail address with the District’s website. lwwsd.org. as the domain may be used for personal
use.

All of the foregoing information applicable to e-mails is also applicable to text messages sent by cell
phone.

4,03 Electronic Devices

To enhance Commissioners’ service to the ratepayers and their ability to communicate with staff and
the public. the District provides electronic devices, such as tablets, for official District business. The
District information technology service provider will ensure that all appropriate software!
applications are installed and up to date and will provide an orientation in the use of the device and
related software/applications. Commissioners shall not install additional software on their District-
issued devices. Should a Commissioner desire a particular software program or application. the
Commissioner shall request that the General Manager as the District’s information technology
service provider to install it if appropriate.

Commissioners must adhere to all policies under the District’s security policies.

Virus protection software and other security protocols must never be disabled or weakened at any
time for any reason.

Personal media and programs may not be stored on District-owned devices. Non-District-issued
programs or media found during audits will be removed.

When individual Commissioners have completed their term of office, District-owned equipment will
be returned upon leaving office.

District-owned equipment is subject to audit at any time. A violation of the policies described in this
chapter or in the District’s security policies may result in the District confiscating the device.

Chapter 45—Conflicts of Interest, Appearance of Fairness Doctrine, and Liability
of Elected Officials

4501 Conflicts of Interest

The conflict of interest law is one of the most complicated laws on the books. To understand its
effect on a Commissioner’s actions, it is suggested that members discuss the law and potential
conflicts with a private attorney or the District’s legal counsel. It is imperative that Board
McmbersCommissioners identify in advance what their conflicts eand potential conflicts.

It is illegal to fail to declare a conflict of interest, or to participate or otherwise be involved in
discussions on issues or contracts where such an interest exists. Violations of the conflict of interest
law may result in significant penalties, including crin al prosecution and forfeiture of office.

In circumstances where only a “remote interest” (see below) exists, after disclosure of the interest to
other Board MembersCommissioners and in the meeting minutes, the Board of Commis3loncr5 may
approve the contract to which a Board mcmberCommissioner has a remote interest, absent
participation in the deliberation and voting process by the Board MembcrCommisstoner with the
remote mterest, but only if the Board MembcrCommissioner refrains from any attempt to influence
other members to approve the contract.

A. Atp/icabi/itv

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 8
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



All District officers, elected and appointed, are sub3ect to the conflict of interest law in RCW
Chapter 42.23 RCW.

B. Dc/uit,o,Remote lu/cu’s/s
Remote Interests are so minor that they do not constitute illegal conflicts of interest. Remote interests
exist when a District official is:

•A non-salaried officer or member of a nonprofit corporation doing business or requesting
money from the District. Therefore, being such an officer or member would not constitute
a conflict.

• An employee or agent of a contracting party, where the compensation of such employee or
agent consists entirely of fixed wages or salary (e.g., the Commissioner does not receive
commissions or a year-end bonus).

• The landlord or tenant of a contracting party. For instance, a Board MemberCommissioner
may lease office space to a party that has a private interest in a public matter without it
resulting in a conflict of interest.

• The owner of less than one percent of the shares of corporation or a cooperative doing
business with the District.

• Being reimbursed only for actual and necessary expenses incurred in performance of official
duties.

C Acts ]Vot Constitnting a conflict ofInterest
• Receiving District services on the same terms and conditions as if not a District official.

Thus, when a Board MemberCommissioner who owns a business within the District votes
for or against an increase in the District’s general permit fees or user rates, a conflict would
not exist because this action would apply to all businesses within the District’s boundaries.

• An officer or employee of another political subdivision or public agency unless it is the same
governmental entity being served who is voting on a contract or decision which would not
confer a direct economic benefit or detriment upon the officer. For example, a Board
MemhcrCornmissioner who is a school- teacher may vote to enter mto an intergovernmental
agreement with the school district, unless such agreement would confer some direct
economic benefit, such as a salary or benefit increase, upon the Be*rd
MemberConimissioner.

• A member of a trade, business, occupation, profession, or class of persons and has no
greater interest than the other members of that trade, business, occupation, or class of
persons. A class must consist of at least ten members to qualify the interest as remote.

D. Declaration ofa Conflict
When a conflict of interest exists, a District official must declare that a conflict of interest exists and
make it known in the official records of the District and refrain from voting or in any way
influencing a decision of the Board of Cossioncrs and declare that a conflict of interest exists
and make it known in thc official records of the District. Should a situation arise wherein a majority
of the Board Members or a majority of a quorum of those present at a Board meeting have a
substantial conflict of interest, state law provides that if the conflict of interest statutes prevent the
Board of Con-unissioners from acting as required by law in its official capacity, such action shall be

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 9
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 01 5



allowed if the members of thc BoardComrnissioners with the apparent conflicts of interest make
them known.

E. District Legal Counsel Opinions
A Board Mcmbcr’sCommissioner’s request for an opinion from the District’s legal counsel
concerning conflict of interest is confidential. However, formal final legal opinions on conflicts of
interest may bee a matter of public record and must be filed with the General Manager. This filing
requirement does not apply to verbal communications between Board McmbcrsCommissioners and
the District’s legal counsel.

Board McinbcrsCominissioners may seek advice from a private attorney, at their own expense,
concerning potential conflicts. In such cases, no disclosure policy would apply.

F. Filing ofDisclosures
The General I\/Ianager maintains a special file for all disclosures and legal opinions of conflicts of
interest.

G. Prohthited Acts (R( r 42.23.070)
• No Board MemberCommissioner may use his or her position to secure special privileges or

exemptions for himself, herself, or others.

• No Board McmberComniissioner may, directly or indirectly, give or receive or agree to
receive any compensation, gift, reward, or gratuity from a source except the employing
municipality, for a matter connected with or related to the officer’s services as such an
officer unless othenvise provided for by law.

• No Board memberCommissionc’r may accept employment or engage in business or
professional activity that the Board MemberCommissioner might reasonably expect would
require or induce him or her by reason of his or her official position to disclose confidential
information acquired by reason of his or her official position.

• No Board MemberCommissioner may disclose confidential information gained by reason of
the Board Mcmbcr’sCoinrnissioner’s position, nor may the Board MemberCommissioner
othenvise use such information for his or her personal gain or benefit.

II. Appearance of Fairness Doctrine
The appearance of fairness doctrine is set forth in Chapter 42.36 RCW and the common law of the
State of Washington. To satisfy the appearance of fairness doctrine, the District proceeding or
hearing must appear fair and impartial for all parties to a “reasonably prudent and disinterested
observer.” The appearance of fairness doctrine applies to quasi-judicial actions only.

A quasi-judicial matter is one in which the Board determines the legal rights, duties, or privileges of a
specific party or parties in a hearing or contested case proceeding. Examples include a public hearing
on the special benefit provided to property by a utility local improvement district ((2LID), an appeal
of a decision by the General Manager regarding “denial” of service, or a ratepayer request to the
Board for a billing adjustment. The appearance of fairness doctrine does not apply to legislative
matters, which would include actions like comprehensive water or sewer plan updates.
administrative code amendments, or budgetai decisions.

Quasi-judicial proceedings must be conducted so as to give the appearance of fairness and
impartiality by decision makers. A violation of the appearance of fairness doctrine may result in the
hearing and decision being found void. Ex parte communications are prohibited in quasi-judicial
proceedings. An ex parte communication occurs when one party to the hearing or contested case, or

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 10
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 01 6



a supporter thereof, communicates with one or more Commissioners about the case outside of the
hearing. If an ex parte communication between a Commissioners and a party to the contested case
occurs outside the hearing, the Commissioner must excuse himself/herself unless said member:

1. Places on the record the substance of any written or oral ex parte communications
concerning the decision to be made; and

2. Makes a public announcement of the content of the ex parte communication and provides
for the parties’ right to rebut the substance of the ex parte communication at each hearing
where action is considered or taken on the subject to which the communication is related.

RCW 42.36.060. If the above steps are taken, the Commissioner may continue to hear the quasi-
judicial matter.

In the event of a challenge to a Commissioner which would cause a lack of a quorum or would
result in a failure to obtain a majoriT vote as required by law, any such challenged Commissioner
shall be permitted to fully participate in the proceeding and vote as though the challenge had not
occurred, if the member or members publicly disclose the basis for disqualification prior to
rendering a decision.

45.02 Liability

The District must always approach its responsibilities in a manner that reduces risk to all involved,
but. Neverthclcss, within public services risk cannot be ehniinated. The District participates in the
\Vater and Sewer Risk Management Pool to help manage risk.

It is important to note that violations of certain laws and regulations by individual Board
McmbersCommissioners may result in the member being personally liable for damages which would
not be covered by the District’s insurance. Examples may include intentional acts, scr••nation,
harassment, ef-fraud, or criminal activity.

Chapter 56—Interaction with District Staff/Officials

6,01 Overview

Board of Commissioners policy is implemented through Ldedicated and professional staff.
Therefore, ut is critical that the relationship between the Board of Commissioners and staff be well
understood by all parties so policies and programs may be implemented successfully. To support
effective relationships, it is important that roles are clearly recognized.

6,02 General Manager

The Board of Connnissioner’s role is to establish District policies and priorities. The Board
appoints a General I’vlanager to implement those policies and undertake the administration of the
organization.

The General Manager is appointed by the Board of Commissioners to enforce its resolutions and
regulations, to direct the daily operations of the District, to prepare and monitor the budget, and to
implement the policies and programs initiated by the Board of Commissioners. The General
Manager is responsible to the Board of Commissioners, rather than to individual Board
membersConmissioners, and directs and coordinates the various departments. The General
Manager is responsible for appointing all department managers and authorizing the appointment of
all other personnel positions. The Board of Commissioners authorizes positions through the budget

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 11
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



process; based upon that authorization, the General Manager makes the appointments. The powers
and duties of the General I\Ianager include but are not limited to the following:

• General supervision over the administrative affairs of the District

• Appoint and remove at any time all department managers and employees

• Attend all meetings of the Board at which the Manager’s attendance may be required by that
body

• See that all Regulations and Reso1utions are faithfully executed, subject to the authority
granted by the Board of (ommissioncrs

• Recommend for adoption by the Board such measures as the Manager may deem necessary
or expedient

• Prepare and submit to the Board such reports as may be required by that body, or as deemed
advisable to submit

• Keep the Board fully advised of the financial condition of the District and its future needs

• Prepare and submit to the Board a proposed budget for the fiscal year, and to be responsible
for its administration upon adoption

• Perform such other duties as the Board may determine by motion or resolution

• Implement and administer Board of Commissioners policies;

• Represents the District when dealing with other public or private agencies;

• Other such duties as described in the General Manager’s Position Description;

6,O3 Board of Commissioners Non-interference

The Board of Commissioners is to work through the General Manager when dealing with the
administrative staff of the District.

In no manner, either directly or indirectly, should a Board McrnbcrCommissioner become involved
in, or attempt to influence, personnel matters that are under the direction of the General 1’vlanager.
Nor shall the Board of ComnMssioncrs be involved in, or influence, the purchase of any supplies
beyond the requirements of the District procurement procedures.

Except for the purposes of inquiry, the Board and its members should deal with the staff through
the General Manager, the acting General Manager, or his/her designee, and should not give orders
to any subordinate of the General Manager. Subject to RCW 42.30.110 and RCW 42.30. 140,the
holding of executive sessions to discuss and review personnel matters, the Board is not
prohibitedma, while in open session, from fully and freely discussiii with the General Manager
anything pertaining to appointments and removals of District employees and any other District
affairs.

6,O4 Board of Commissioners / District General Manager Relationship

The employment relationship between the Board of Commissioners and the General Manager
honors the fact that the General Manager is the chief executive of the District. All dealings with the
General Manager, whether in public or private, should respect the authority of the General Manager

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 12
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



in administrative matters. Disagreements should be expressed in pohcy terms, rather than in terms
that question satisfaction with or support of the General Manager.

The General Manager respects and is sensitive to the pohcy responsibilities of the Board of
Commissioners and acknowledges that the fmal responsibility for establishing the policy direction of
the District is held by the Board of Coinnnssioners.

The Board of Comn-dssioners is to evaluate the General Manager on an annual basis to ensure that
both the Board of Commissioners and the General Manager are in agreement about performance
and goals based upon mutual trust and common objectives. The General Manager’s performance is
evaluated in the following areas: leadership, teamwork, job knowledge, attitude, accountability,
empowerment, communication, problem-soh’ing skills, *nd-quality of service, safety/risk taking, and
implementation and administration of adopted Board pohcy.

§6.05 Board of Commissioners I-Staff Relationship

Board of Commissioners Member contact with District staff members, inclusive of the General
Manager, will be during regular business hours, except in the case of an emergency.

So.06 Board of Commissioners I-District Legal Counsel Relationship

Pursuant to the recommendation of the General Manager, tlhe Board of Commissioners should
make provision for obtaming legal counsel for the District through a reasonable contractual
arrangement for such professional services. The District Legal Counsel is an independent
contractor retained hi employee recommended by the General Manager; the Board—of
Coiuinissioiiers confirms such contract. The Board may request tile assistance and
recommendations of the General Manager in the selection or retention of District I .egal Counsel.
The District’s Legal Counsel is the legal advisor for the Board, the General Manager, and all District
employees with respect to any legal question invoMng an official duty or any legal matter pertaining
to the affairs of the District. The general legal responsibilities of the District Legal Counsel are to:

j_Provide legal assistance necessary for formulation and implementation of policies and
projects;

tProvide general advice and counsel on matters of District business upon request;

:LLRepresent the District’s interest, as determined by the Board of Commissioners, in litigation,
administrative hearings, negotiations, and similar proceedings;

3L Prepare or approve as to form resolutions, regulations, contracts, and other legal documents
to best reflect and implement the purposes and intentions of the Board of Commissioners;
and

5r Keep the Board of Commissioners and staff apprised of court rulings and legislation
affecting the legal interests of the District.

It is important to note that the District Legal Counsel does not represent individual members of the
Board, but rather the Board of Commissioners and the District as a whole.

56,07 Roles and Information Flow

A. Board of Commissioners Roles
The full Board of Comnussioncrs retains the authority to accept, reject, or amend the staff
recommendation on policy matters.

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 13
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 0 1 9



Members of the Board of Commissioners must avoid intrusion into those areas that are the
responsibility of the staff. Individual Commissioners may not intervene in staff decision-making,
the development of staff recommendations, scheduling of work, and executing department priorities
without the prior knowledge and approval of the Board of Commissioners as a whole. This is
necessary to protect staff from undue influence and pressure from individual Board
membersCommissioners, and to allow staff to execute priorities given by management and the
Board as a whole without fear of reprisal. If a Board memberComrnisstoner wishes to influence the
actions, decisions, recommendations, workloads, work schedule, or priorities of staff, that member
must prevail upon the Board to do so as a matter of Board policy.

B. /1cress to In!birnat/OH

The General Manager is the information liaison between the Board and District staff Requests for
information from Board membersCommissioners shall are to be directed to the General Manager g
designee and will be responded to promptly. The information requested will be copied to all
members of the Board so that each member may be equally informed. The sharing of information
with thti Board of Commissioners is one of the General Manager’s highest priorities. A variety of
methods are used to share information with the Board. E-mail is often an effective and appropriate

method for disseminating information. Work sessions are held to provide detailed presentations of

matters, while retreats serve to focus on topics and enhance information exchange. The General

Manager’s open-door policy allows individual Commissioners to meet with the General Manager on

an nnproinptu or one-on-one basis.

There are limited restrictions when information cannot be provided. The District is legally bound

not to release certain confidential personnel information.

C. Sta/TRo/es
The Board recogmzes the primary functions of staff as executing Board policy and actions taken by
the Board of Comnussioners and in keeping the Board informed. Staff is obligated to take guidance
and direction only from the General Manager or their direct sSupervisor. This direction follows the
policy guidance of the Board of Commissioners as a whole. Staff is directed to reject any attempts
of individual Board MemhersCommissioners to unduly direct or otherwise pressure them into
making, changing, or otherwise influencing recommendations.

District staff will make every effort to respond in a timely and professional manner to all requests
for information or assistance made by individual Board membersCommissioners through the
General Manager or designee. The General Manager reserves the right to determine that the request
for information would be tnore appropriately assiied to staff through the direction of the full
Board due to the request’s magnitude either in terms of worldoad or policy; provided that, in the
judgment of the Ceneral Manager, the request is not of a magnidc, either in terms of worldoad or
policy, which would require that it would be more appropriatclv assigned to staff through the
direction of the full Board of Commissioners.

§6.08 Restrictions on the Political Involvement of Staff

Eake Whateom Water and SewerIh District is a nonpartisan local government. Professional staff
formulates recommendations in compliance with Board policy for the good of the District, not
influenced by political factors. For this reason, it is very important to understand the restrictions of
the political involvement of staff

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 14 fl9LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



By working for the District, staff members do not surrender rights to be involved in political
activities. Employees may publicly express their personal opinions. They may register to vote,
belong to a political party, sign nominating or recall petitions and vote in any election.

óO9 Board of Commissioners Affendance Policy

A Board position shall become vacant if the Board memberCommissioner fails to attend three
consecutive meetings of the Board of Comnssioncrs without being excused by the Board. An
absent Board memberCommissioner who has called the General I\lanager’s office prior to 5:00 p.m.
on the daya minimum of one hour prior to the start of the meeting to advise of such absence wiii be
deemed excused unless a majority of the Board determines otherwise.

Chapter 76—Board of Commissioners Meetings

The Board of Commissioner’s collective policy and regulatory malmig powers are put into action at
the Board meetings. It is here that the Board conducts its business. The opportunity for ratepavers
to be heard, the availability of Board McmbersCommissioners to District ratepayers, and the
openness of Board meetings all lend themselves to the essential democratic nature of local
government.

éZO1 Meeting Schedule

Regular meetings are held on the second Wednesday of each month at 6:30 p.m. and the last
Wednesday of the month at 8:00 a.m. at the District office, 1220 Lakewav Drive. Belbngham,
Washington. The Board meeting agenda typically provides time during the meeting for public
comment. N-e-iudience participation is allowed at other timesduring the course of Board
discussions, unless ifpermitted by the consent of a majority of the Board present.

é7.02 Public Notice of Meetings and Hearings

Except where a specific means of notifying the public of a public hearing is otherwise provided by
law, notice of upcoming public hearings before the Board of Commissioners shall be sent to local
media containing the time, place, date, and subject in the District’s official newspaper of record at
least 24 hours before the date set for the hearing.

e7.03 Special Meetings

Special meetings may be called by either the President of the Board or at the written request of &y—
majority of the Board Member. Notice of a special meeting will be sent to local media that has
made a written request to the District for such special meeting notices, and such notice shall be
posted on the District office front door and on the District’s website at least 24 hours before the
time of such meetings as specified in the notice. The notice shall specify the time and place of the
special meeting and the business to be transacted. At special meetings, only those matters noted
upon the agenda may be discussed or acted upon.

Pursuant to RCW 4230.080(4). tThe notices provided in this section may be dispensed with in the
event a special meeting is called to deal with an emergency involving injury or damage to persons or
property or the likelihood of such injury or damage, when time requirements of such notice would
make notice impractical, and increase the likelihood of such injury or damage.

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 15
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 0 2 1



At all regular and special meetings, public commcnt3 arc a separate agenda item and arc invited at
that time on the agenda. Public comment is appropriate on any matter within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Commissioners.

eZ,04 Work Sessions

Following proper public notice, the Board of Commissioners may meet informally in a work session.
The work session is the forum used by the Board to review forthcoming programs of the District, to
receive progress reports on current issues, or to receive similar information from the General
Manager and others. All discussions and conclusions held during a work_sessionh- are of an
informal nature. No final action is taken while in a work session. 1-lowever, work sessions arc open
public meetings which must be held in compliance with the Open Public Meetings Act.

e7.05 P’acing Items on tlhe Agenda

A. Age,,da Online
Pursuant to RCW 42.30.077. the agenda for each regular meeting of the Board will be posted on the
District’s website at least twenty-four hours in advance of the published start time of the meeting.

Agenda Planning
All matters to be presented to the Board of Commissioners at its regular meetings are reviewed and
placed on the agenda by the General Manager.

— Board 0/ Cmm’1i.rothv:
A Board memberCommissioner may request an item he considered for an upcoming agenda by
making an oral request at a 1lloard meeting or submitting a request to the General Manager. Based
upon the nature of the request, the General Manager may at his/her discretion submit the request to
the Board before placing it on the agenda. The majority of the Board may direct the General
Manager to formally include or exclude the item from the agenda of an upcoming meeting.

Members ofthe Public
Public comments are a separate agenda item and are invited at that point in dine on the Board
meeting agenda. Public comment is appropriate on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Board.

A member of the public may request an item be placed on a future agenda while addressing the
Board of Commissioners during a regular meeting and/or by submitting a request in writing to the
Board of Commissioners, through the General Manager’s office. In order to allow sufficient time
for the Board to review and staff to research the matter, the request should be submitted at least 10
working days prior to the meeting for which the item is requested to be placed on the agenda. Once
the issue has been placed on the agenda, the General Manager will notify the requester so that he or
she may plan to attend the meeting.

TA:. Emerencv Items
Emergency items may be added to an agenda in accordance with state law. Emergency items are
only those matters immediately affecting the public health, safety and welfare of the District. The
reason(s) for adding an emergency item to the agenda shall be announced publicly at the meeting,
and the issue shall be included in the minutes of the meeting.

éZ.06 Audio Recording of Meetings

The General Manager, or designee, shall make and keep a-e-digital recordings of all regular and
special meetings of the Board of Commissioners, except those meetings or portions of meetings

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 16
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT



conducted in Executive Session. Recordings and related records of all Board of Commissioners
meetings, except as referenced above, shall be retained by the District for six ycars, in accordance
with the State of Washington; Office of the Sccretan of State; Division of Archives and Records

1 n n,ni, r Local Government General Retention Schedule.

é7.07 Executive Session

At the call of the presiding officer, or with a majority vote, the Board of Comnssioners may recess
to Executive Session to privately discuss and consider matters authorized under RCW 42.30.1 10 and
RCW 42.30.140. as amended, or other applicable state law.

Before convening in Executive Session, the presiding officer shall publicly announce the general
lawful purpose for excluding the public from the meeting place, and the lime when the Executive
Session will be concluded, and whether action is expected to be taken following the executive
session. An Executive Session may be extended to a stated later time by announcement of the
presiding officer.

e7.08 General Procedures

A. Siining ofDocuments
The Board of Commissioners as a quorum shall sign resolutions, contracts and other documents
that have been adopted by the Board of Commissioners and require an official signature; except
when the General Manager has been authorized by the Board to sign documents.

B. O,,orum
A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum and are necessary for the transaction of District
business.

C. lviimites
The Recording Secretary or designee shafl take minutes at all regular and special Board meetings;
such minutes shall be made available for public inspection once approved by Board action. Minutes
shall be retained by the District in accordance with the State of Washington records retention
schedule.

Unless a member of the Board requests a reading of the minutes of a Board meeting, such minutes
may be approved without reading, if the Recording Secretary furnishes each member Commissioner
is furnished with a copy thereof.

eZ.09 Open Meeting Law

A. Ap/icabi/itv
The open public meeting law, Chapter 42.30 RCW, applies to the Board of Commissioners, all
quasi-judicial bodies, and all standing, special or advisory boards, committees or subcommittees of,
or appointed by, the Board of Commissioners.

B. IVieetings
All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public, except in the special instances as provided in
RCW 42.30.110 and RCW 42.30.140, as hereafter amended. A meeting takes place when a quorum
(a majority of the total number of Board MembersCommissioners) is present and information
concerning District business is received, discussed, and/or acted upon.

C. Actions

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 17
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 023



Only the Board has the authority to take action, and said action must be taken in an open public
meeting. No vote or action of the Board may take place while in executive session. At a Special
Meeting, action can be taken only on those items appearing on the posted agenda, except for
emergency items as defined in Section 16.05. At a Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners,
the Board is free to take action on non-agenda items as “Other Business.”

D. TraJ,uu.g
All Commissioners are required hv state law (Open Government Trainings Act) to complete an
approved training course on the Open Public Meetings Act and must receive “refresher” training
thereon not less than once every four (4) years. Commissioners should provide documentation of
completion of such trainings from forms available online, or by other means, to the General
Manager to keep on file at the District office. More information on training requirements. on online
resources, and an online training course, is available on the website of the Washington State
Attorney General http: / /www.atg.wa.gov/opengovernmenttraining.aspx.

7.10 Affendance via Available Phone or Video Technology

From time to time, a Commissioner will not be able to be physically present at a Board meeting. but
will want to be involved in the discussion and/or decision on a particular agenda item. The
procedure and guidelines for permitting a Commissioner to attend a Board meeting remotely via
available phone or video technology are as follows:

A The Rare Occasion

Attendance should be the rare exception. not the rule. Examples of situations where remote
attendance would be appropriate include, but are not limited to:

• An agenda item is time sensitive, and attendance via available phone or video technology is
needed for a quorum

• An agenda item is of very high importance to the Commissioner that cannot be physically
present

• It is important for all Commissioners to be involved in a decision, but one Commissioner is
unable to be physically present

B. i\oti/lcation

If a Commissioner wishes to attend a Board meeting via available phone or video technology, the
Commissioner should not fv the General Manager or his or her designee as soon as possible prior to
the Board meeting for which he or she wishes to attend remotely.

Attendance via the technology used will be reflected in the minutes. Commissioners attending a
Board meeting remotely will be eligible for compensation consistent with those that attended the
meeting in person. as defined in Section 3.01 of this Manual.

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 18
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 0 2 4



Commissioner Protocol Manual
List of Revisions

Effective Date Section Revised Revision
January 11, 2012 Section 3.01 Added verbiage from Resolution 725 for clarification.

Board Compensation
April 10, 2019 Entire Document Comprehensive review/revision

COMMISSIONER PROTOCOL MANUAL PAGE 19
LAKE WHATCOM WATER & SEWER DISTRICT 0 2 r



AGENDA
BILL General Manager’s Report

Item 7.A.

- To b. L.ipad-e.cL .k’ei &L
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT
Updated information from the General Manager in advance of the Board meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION
None required.

PROPOSED MOTION
None.

DATE SUBMITTED: April 4, 2019 MEETING DATE: April 10, 2019

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM: Justin Clary

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. General Manager’s Report

RESOLUTION FORMAL ACTION! INFORMATIONAL

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED MOTION /OTHER

LI LI

026


